Town of Concrete 45672 Main Street
Phone (360) 853-8401 Concrete, WA 98237
TowN COUNCIL AGENDA
January 12, 2026 6:00 PM

L Opening Ceremonies
A. Call Meeting to Order
B. Pledge of Allegiance
C. Roll Call

. Agenda Approval
. Public Comment/s:
. . Events Application: None.

V. Public Presentation/s:
A. Citizen of the Year Presentation
B. Selena Owens — RV Permit Update

VI. Consent Agenda:
A. Town Council Meeting Minutes — December 8, 2025 (pages 1-9)
B. Approval of Claims Checks
- 12/31/2025
- 01/12/2026
C. Approval of Payroll

vil. Public Hearings: None.

vil.  Old Business: Summary (page 10)

Bike Park

Adopt-a-Spot Program

Dog Park

Old Fire Department

Secondary Access Road

Airport Lease Update

Sewer Main Relocation — Concrete Sauk Valley Rd
Veterans Park Athletic Court :
Airport Layout Plan

Water Comp Plan Update

PUD Fiber Vaults

Town and RFA Interlocal Agreement

PSE Car Chargers

ErxX-TIETMOOWR

X New Business:
A. Select Mayor Pro-tem — January to June 2026
B. Resolution 2026-01 — Ratification of Emergency Resolution #2025-19 (pages 11-12)
C. EDASC Advertising Request/Options (pages 13-14)

X. Reports
A. Council Reports
i. Parks-Council Member, Billi Bellinger
-Proposed Changes (page 15)
i. Airport-Council Member, Michael Werner
ii. HPLC- Representative, Council Member, Stephanie Semro
iv. Economic Development Commission — Council Member, Stephanie Semro
B. Staff Reports
v. Public Safety — Sergeant Wolfe
vi. Water & Wastewater Services — November and December 2025 Water Report (pages 16-17)




vii. Engineering — Gray & Osborne
viii. Planning/Historical Preservation — Kevin Cricchio
ix. Admin/Finance-Andrea Fichter, Clerk-Treasurer
-Delinquent Utility List (page 18)
-Overtime Report (page 19-20)
x. Public Works- Terry Coggins, PW Director
xi. Fire Department — Jaesen Meacham, Fire Chief
-December 2025 Calls (pages 21-22)
C. Mayor Report
- Superior Building

Xl. Announcements
XIl. Executive Session (if necessary)

xii.  Adjournment

Town of Concrete Town is utilizing Zoom for access to Town Council meetings. The information below is for
the next meeting:

Join Zoom Meeting
https://zoom.us/j/3723563720

Meeting ID: 372 356 3720

One tap mobile
+12532158782,,3723563720# US (Tacoma)
+13462487799,,3723563720# US (Houston)

Dial by your location
+1 253 215 8782 US (Tacoma)
+1 346 248 7799 US (Houston)
+1 669 900 6833 US (San Jose)
+1 312 626 6799 US (Chicago)
+1 929 205 6099 US (New York)
+1 301 715 8592 US (Washington DC)
Meeting ID: 372 356 3720
Find your local number: https://zoom.us/u/addgwovb80




DISCLAIMER: This is not a verbatim transcript of the meeting and is based upon the written notes, audio recording and memory of a participant, attendee,

or video observer.

Town of Concrete
Town Council Meeting
December 8, 2025

6:00 pm. Mayor Reed called the meeting to order. Mayor Reed led the gallery in the Pledge of
Allegiance.

Roll Call: Council Members: Rob Thomas, Billi Bellinger, Drew Jenkins, Stephanie Semro, and
Jon Gunnarsson.

Staff Present: Clerk Treasurer Andrea Fichter, Public Works Director Terry Coggins, and Town
Attorney Emily Romanenko.

Staff Present Online: Town Planner Kevin Cricchio and Public Works Laborer Floyd Smith.

Audience Members Signed In: Valerie Stafford, Fred West, Theresa White, Mike Werner, Karla
Massingale, Allen Jackson, Paul Troka, PJ Parsons, Gabe Asarian, Jim Haskins, Jeremy Akers,
John Boggs, Mike Olver, Rich Frank, Jay Welch, and Don Payne.

Audience Members Signed in Online: Cameron Martinez, Anne Bussiere, Kevin Cricchio,
Lisa’s Phone, TL Guest, Wiley Moore, Rodleen Getsic, Tom Beckwith, AJ Urguhart, TL Guest’s
Better Half, and Floyd Smith.

Mayor Reed announced a change in the agenda order. She stated the Oaths of Office will be
moved toward the end of the meeting after New Business and the Superior Building items will be
moved from the Consent Agenda to Old Business.

Public Participation: Michael Werner -Superior After the Sale: Mike stated the Superior
Building proposal was first brought up to Council in August and this is important because it has
been stated this process has been going on for 6-months and its closer to 4-months. He stated
early on there was a lot of discussion on what to do. He stated Vito came to Council and
discussed his idea and the proposal for the Superior Building. He stated at that meeting the
attorney had discussed the need for a Letter of Intent (LOI), an appraisal, and that a rezone would
be needed. He stated timelines were discussed and a motion was made to move forward with the
LOI and appraisal.

He stated that John Boggs made a comment regarding the need to look into the parking issues and
other items. He stated at that time the Council should have decided if the building were going to
be surplussed and then it should have been advertised and clauses could have been added. He also
stated that a Boundary Line Adjustment could have been completed without doing a survey.

Mike reviewed other meeting minutes and reviewed the discussion on the rezone and not spot
zoning. He stated that just because additional parcels were added, he believes it is still spot
zoning. He also discussed the public comments that have been received. He reported that at one
meeting it was stated that Andrea, the Mayor, and the attorney had met with Vito but no
information on that meeting was included in the Council packets. He further discussed the
appraisal and that the town attorney had stated it was best practice to get an appraisal done. He
also discussed the use of the assessed value and that value has not been updated since 2011. He
stated he also believes the assessor information is incorrect in regard to the building’s square
footage. He stated that he believes proceeding with the use of the assessed value will bring
trouble since the assessor’s information contains several flaws.

He further discussed another meeting and the comments that were received during that meeting.
He reviewed the comments. He also stated the Council has a fiduciary duty to the town and its

\ i




DISCLAIMER: This is not a verbatim transcript of the meeting and is based upon the written notes, audio recording and memory of a participant, attendee,
or video observer.

taxpayers. He stated he believes the building should have gone through the surplus process as has
been done in the past for other assets. He stated the town could sell other assets to assist in
funding for the Superior Building or a fire truck. '

Mike also reviewed meeting minutes from November. He quoted a comment made by one
Council member and discussed comments made by other Council members. He stated he believes
there are other options in town for Vito to use for his business. He stated he is not an advocate for
selling or not selling, he stated he just believes it should be done the right way, so it does not
come back to bite the town.

He also discussed Councilmember Bellinger being the Business Manager for the Schoolhouse and
that PJ, the owner of the Schoolhouse has a business relationship with Vito and believes the
motion made by Councilmember Jenkins to include items brought up by Councilmember
Bellinger is flawed and that allowing Councilmember Bellinger to vote was not appropriate. He
stated that she had also made a comment that this deal should be done in 60-90 days. He stated
that he recommends someone who voted at the last meeting make a motion to bring that motion
back and relook at it.

He stated Vito is pushing the sale and asked if anyone has thought about why that it is. Mike
stated that Vito was a used car salesman in his past and he knows he is getting this deal way
below market and does not want it to slip away. He also stated that Vito had reported that he will
get that building turned around in 6-months but as Councilmember Thomas had stated, that is
optimistic. He asked what if that does not happen. He stated if the town relinquishes ownership, it
also relinquishes control.

He stated in his opinion there is a very clear probability of legal action which could come quickly
or could come in a year. He stated the town could be forced to rescind the deal and to pay to buy
the building back including any work that was completed during that time. He stated there would
also be legal fees. He stated he would beg the Council to not proceed. He requested they stop and
reconsider the previous meetings motion. He stated he would recommend they go back and do
this the right way.

Councilmember Thomas stated that he does not believe that Vito’s previous employment needed
to be brought up or his character attacked in a public meeting.

Mike stated that he brought that up as a possible skill set that Vito may have. He stated he was
not attacking his character but that mentioning his past employment may give him a tendency to
try and make the deal happen quickly. He stated he does not have any ill will and did not mean to
maline anyone. He stated he just believes the Council needs to realize this deal is moving fast.

Councilmember Bellinger stated that she did not say this deal should be done in 60-90 days but
that most real estate transactions are completed within 60-90 days. She stated that she would also
like to clarify that PJ, the owner of the Schoolhouse does not have an official business
relationship with Vito or his company. She stated that PJ had the idea for a brewery there long
before Vito came to town. She stated that at the last meeting she simply relayed information that
Vito had provided and was not negotiating on behalf of the town or the Council.

Public Comments: All public comments scheduled for this evening are in relation to the Superior
Building.

Mike Olver: Mike stated he has come to Council twice now. He stated he does not have an
opinion on whether to sell or not sell but has comments on how this is being conducted. He stated
he included a letter in the packets and apologized for the typos. He stated this building was a gift
and discussed what he believed to be the intent. He also discussed liability and authority. He

2 i




DISCLAIMER: This is not a verbatim transcript of the meeting and is based upon the written notes, audio recording and memory of a participant, attendee,

or video observer.

stated the Council should be discussing this with their personal attorneys, not the towns. He stated
he also does not believe they can do the rezone either. He stated he has done a lot of litigation in
the past and he stated there is going to be litigation. He stated that Glacier NW, the citizens, and
or the neighboring property owners could all sue the town.

Joe Bersch: Joe stated he is a perplexed taxpayer who lives outside of town limits. He stated there
is nothing in the record of discussions that gives answers to the questions that have been raised.
He stated the rezone will increase the value and an appraisal should be done. He also discussed
money that Glacier NW has put into this town and selling this building is like telling them the
town no longer wants their money. He stated the questions that have not been answered will have
to be answered when this goes to litigation. He stated he encourages the Council to rescind the
previous motion and inset common sense. He stated he is not opposed to the sale, but it should be
done in a commercial process.

Theresa White: She stated there are been many comments over the last few months. She stated
they have heard the sell is being rushed, what the intent of the gift was, and others. She stated
these should be enough for them to rescind the previous motion. She stated they need to pay
attention to the comments and documents that have been submitted. She stated they may also
want to look into personal liability. She stated there are also no guarantees if the building sells
that it will not be flipped, or the proposed use changed. She stated if the town maintains
ownership, then they also maintain control. She stated that only two options have been discussed,
either sell it or let it continue to deteriorate. She stated there is another option and it should be a
community effort.

Fred West: Fred stated he owns two historic buildings in town. He stated he is against selling this
building. He stated this would be one of the biggest decisions made by the town is the last 20
years. He stated he is here tonight to get answers and hear from the Council. He stated things
need to be discussed in the open. He reviewed the questions that have been brought up and stated
that no answers have been given. He stated he believes the way this deal has went down is
bizarre. He stated that RCW says the building has be surplussed to sell. He stated people may be
calmer if the answers were given in public.

Paul Troka: Paul stated he has been here around 46 years. He stated he would like to see the
vision for Silo Park continue and believes that in the long term this building is a part of that. He
discussed different ideas the building could be used for to support the park and believes that
would be a far better solution.

Val Stafford: Val stated this was the year for communication. She stated that she is opposed to
selling this building. She stated that she wants more information and questions answered. She
reviewed the letter that was signed by community member opposing the sale. She also discussed
the petition that was done and the meeting that took place at the Theatre. She stated there are a lot
of questions that have not been answered. She asked why the Council is operating on someone
else’s timeline. She also discussed the town survey and the total number of people that responded
to that as well as the numbers stated who were for and who were against the sale. She stated she
has heard there is not a plan for this building but there is. She stated they have been working hard
and have a group of volunteers ready and they are working to start a non-profit, but the
community needs the town to stop, pause, and reconsider this sale.

Jeremy Akers: Jeremy stated he believes there is a path forward if the town does not sell the
building. He stated there are a lot of conversations happening and this has caused too much
division. He stated things should be out in the open and discussed. He stated this is about more
than the building and is about relationships and the community.

Jeremy read aloud a letter from Rich and Joe Frank from CYSA.

H) iii




DISCLAIMER: This is not a verbatim transcript of the meeting and is based upon the written notes, audio recording and memory of a participant, attendee,

or video observer.

Mayor Reed read aloud a letter from Alana McCoy. In summary the letter discussed the need for
the town to keep the building near the park and in ownership of the town. She also stated this
building and others brings tourism to town and it should be preserved for public and not private
use.

Events Application: Banner Placement Request — Concrete School District Levy: Gabe Asarian
stated he is requesting to place the vote yes on the school levy banner.

Councilmember Thomas made a motion to approve. Councilmember Bellinger seconded the
motion. The motion carried unanimously.

Special Presentations: Public Safety: Sergeant Wolfe reported there have been 10 calls in town
for the month of December so far and 36 calls within the response area. He stated most of these
are related to vehicle incidents or property crimes.

He stated the precinct will be occupied for the next few days with the possible flooding. He stated
everyone should take the time to be prepared.

He also stated that Deputy Chow will be starting with the East Detachment and he will bring him
to Council to introduce him once he starts.

Gray & Osborne: Project Status Report: Mayor Reed stated there is a project status report
included in their packets.

Consent Agenda:

Town Council Meeting Minutes — November 24, 2025
Approval of Claims Checks: #11087-#11121 for $98,086.35
Approval of Payroll: $42,698.02

Councilmember Jenkins made a motion to approve. Councilmember Semro seconded the motion.
The motion carried unanimously.

Public Hearings: Budget Hearing #2 — Ordinance #897, 2026 Salaries and Wages and Ordinance
#898. 2026 Budget:

With no questions or comments from the Council, Mayor Reed opened the public hearing at 7:11
p.m.

With no comments from the public, Mayor Reed closed the public hearing at 7:12 p.m.

Councilmember Jenkins made a motion to approve Ordinance #897. Councilmember Semro
seconded the motion. The motion carried unanimously.

Councilmember Jenkins made a motion to approve Ordinance #898. Councilmember Bellinger
seconded the motion. The motion carried unanimously.

Old Business: The Clerk Treasurer included a summary of the old business items in the packet.
Bike Park: See summary.

Adopt-a-Spot Program: See summary.

Dog Park: See summary.




DISCLAIMER: This is not a verbatim transcript of the meeting and is based upon the written notes, audio recording and memory of a participant, attendee,
or video observer.

!
H
H
!
t
t
2

Old Fire Department: See summary.

Secondary Access Road: See summary.

Airport Lease Rate Update: See summary.

Sewer Main Relocation: See summary.

Veterans Memorial Athletic Court: See summary.

Superior Building — Superior Building Covenants, Parking Fasement and Sales Agreement:

Mayor Reed stated a lot of questions have come up regarding this building. She stated the town
attorney will address some of the questions.

Emily stated that she works at a firm that specializes in municipal law and started as the Town
Attorney in January of 2025. She stated that on the agenda tonight are the documents and deal
terms for the possible sale of the Superior Building. She stated these have been brought back for
discussion and possible vote. She stated at the last meeting the items were finalized but had not
been put into formal documents.

She stated there have been several concerns stated and comments made on how this sale has
progressed and she will do her best to try and answer some of those. She stated to confirm as the
town’s attorney she endeavors to make sure the actions the town takes comply with all local,
state, and federal laws. She stated, to her knowledge, there are not any RCW’s that would
regulate the sale of this building. She discussed an RCW that was mentioned regarding surplus
requirements which refers to Public Utility Property and that would not apply here. She stated to
the best of her knowledge the sale complies with all applicable regulations, policies, and
procedures. She stated one thing that has been talked about is that an appraisal should or still can
be completed if the Council directs that to happen but as stated this is not a state requirement but
a best practice. She stated another question was if the building should have been surplussed and
again, she is not aware of any statutory requirements that mandate a surplus process and
understands that it did not occur with this particular process because of how the town was
approached with a proposal which is different then the town going out to bid.

She stated tonight the Council can make a motion to direct the Mayor to sign the sales agreement
or they could make a motion to rescind the November 24 meeting motion and table the discussion
until a later date. She stated she would also like to address the questions on any conflicts of
interest. She stated she is not aware of any conflicts of interest that exist.

Councilmember Semro stated that she does not have any financial interest at this time and nor
will she ever have. Councilmembers Gunnarsson and Jenkins stated the same. Councilmember
Bellinger stated that she has no financial interest now or in the future. Councilmember Thomas
stated the same as well.

Councilmember Thomas stated that as Mayor Pro-tem at the last meeting he should have been
better about taking the vote. He stated that Councilmember Semro had paused, and he did not
clarify if she was voting in favor or against. Councilmember Semro stated that her pause was so
she could think but she did vote in favor of selling.

Councilmember Thomas stated there have been concerns raised regarding the sale and he would

like to address those concerns. He stated that for the 10 years he has been on Council the
Superior Building has not been a huge push or priority on the town’s budget. He stated there were

5




DISCLAIMER: This is not a verbatim transcript of the meeting and is based upon the written notes, audio recording and memory of a participant, attendee,
or video observer.

also questions on if Public Works has time to add work to this building to their existing workload.
He stated there have been mixed messages at Council about whether they do or do not have time.

Councilmember Gunnarsson stated that after hearing from the public and with himself, another
Councilmember, and the Mayor all leaving, he believes this should be a decision for the
upcoming Mayor and Council.

Councilmember Jenkins stated he would like to address a comment Val made about
communication. He stated communication works both ways and he has had zero communications
asking for his thoughts or why he was for the sale. He stated the reason he put the motion on the
table at the last meeting was because he wanted a decision to be made. He stated he understands
that discussions with Vito have only occurred the last few months, but the Superior Building has
been a topic of discussion since the beginning of the year. He stated the EDC did a presentation,
and the town then did a Request for Proposals, so the Superior Building has been discussed for
almost a year. He stated that he will also agree with Councilmember Gunnarsson and he does not
want to push something that he is not going to have to deal with the repercussions of. He stated at
the last meeting he just wanted a decision to be made and that decision was made but if the
remaining Councilmembers want to postpone or push out the sale, then he would be on board
with supporting their decision because they are going to be here next year, and he will not.

Councilmember Thomas made a motion to rescind the November 24 motion to move forward
with the sale. Councilmember Jenkins seconded the motion. The motion carried with

Councilmember Bellinger opposed.

USDA Funding — Capital Investment Director Position: See summary.

Airport Layout Plan: See summary.

Water Comp Plan Update: See summary.

Comp Plan Update: Ordinance #900 — Amend CMC Title 19, Zoning: Councilmember
Thomas made a motion to approve. Councilmember Jenkins seconded the motion. The motion
carried unanimously.

Ordinance #901 — Amend CMC Title 16, Critical Areas: Andrea stated the ordinance in the
packet is missing updates made after comments were received from WDFW. Tom stated these
comments were reviewed and approved by the Planning Commission. Andrea passed out the
updated ordinance for review.

Councilmember Thomas made a motion to approve with the updated changes. Councilmember
Gunnarsson seconded the motion. The motion carried unanimously.

Ordinance #902 — Adoption of 2025-2026 Comprehensive Plan: Councilmember Thomas
made a motion to approve. Councilmember Gunnarsson seconded the motion. The motion carried
unanimously.

PUD Fiber Vaults: See summary.

Town and RFA Interlocal Agreement: See summary.

PSE Car Chargers — See summary.

Ordinance #903 — Schoolhouse Rezone: Andrea stated this is the official ordinance adopting the
rezone that was presented at the last meeting.

le vi




DISCLAIMER: This is not a verbatim transcript of the meeting and is based upon the written notes, audio recording and memory of a participant, attendee,
or video observer.

Councilmember Jenkins made a motion to approve. Councilmember Semro seconded the motion.
The motion carried with Councilmember Bellinger recused. :

Ordinance #904 — Superior Building & Adjacent Properties Rezone: Councilmember
Thomas made a motion to table. Councilmember Jenkins seconded the motion. The motion
carried unanimously.

Mayor Reed stated they will do the Oaths of Office now so that any appointments made after this
will be more official.

Michael Werner, Karla Massingale, and current Councilmember Bellinger took their Oaths of
Office at this time by raising their right hands and reciting the oath.

Jeremy Akers took his Oaths of Office at this time by raising his right hand and reciting the oath.
New Business: Airport Committee Councilmember Appointment: Councilmember Thomas

nominated Councilmember Elect Werner. Councilmember Jenkins seconded the nomination. The
nomination carried unanimously.

Airport Commission Councilmember Appointment: Councilmember Jenkins nominated

Councilmember Elect Massingale. Councilmember Gunnarsson seconded the nomination. The
nomination carried unanimously.

Health & Emergency Care Councilmember Appointment: Mayor Reed suggested leaving this
vacant for now and filling it if needed in the future. It was the consensus of the Council to leave
this vacant.

Ordinance #899 — Budget Amendment: Councilmember Jenkins made a motion to approve.
Councilmember Bellinger seconded the motion. The motion carried unanimously.

Ordinance #905 — Amend CMC 2.60.040(4) — Council Meeting Agenda Order: Andrea stated
there has been confusion between Public Participation and Public Comments listed on the agenda.
Emily stated this will clarify the different sections and update the order. She stated Public
Participation will be called Public Presentations and the Public Comment section will remain with
the 3-minute time limit.

Councilmember Thomas made a motion to approve. Councilmember Jenkins seconded the
motion. The motion carried unanimously.

Interlocal Agreement — First Half 0f2026 Concrete Community Center: Andrea stated this is the
same as previous years with a minimal increase in cost. She stated this is only for the first half of
2026 as they are doing some restructuring.

Councilmember Thomas made a motion to approve. Councilmember Jekins seconded the motion.
The motion carried unanimously with Councilmember Semro recused.

December 22 Council Meeting: Councilmember Jenkins made a motion to cancel the meeting.
Councilmember Gunnarsson seconded the motion. The motion carried unanimously.

Discussion Items: None.

Council Reports: Parks: Billi Bellinger: Councilmember Bellinger stated they are canceling the
parks meeting for December. She stated the next meeting will be January 16 at 6pm which is the

/} vii




DISCLAIMER: This is not a verbatim transcript of the meeting and is based upon the written notes, audio recording and memory of a participant, attendee,

or video observer.

third Thursday. She stated she went to a pump track in Bellingham that will be similar in size to
the one the town will be getting, and it was great.

Airport: Jon Gunnarsson: Councilmember Gunnarsson stated he had nothing new to report this
evening.

Airport Commission: Drew Jenkins: Councilmember Jenkins stated the next meeting will take
place in January.

Health and Emergency Care: Drew Jenkins: Councilmember Jenkins reported the Sauk River
is going to be a concern with flooding. He stated it is supposed to crest on Friday. He stated the
Skagit is estimated to crest between 35 and 37 feet. Councilmember Jenkins stated to be aware of
water over roadway. Terry stated that if people need sand or sandbags there is some available
near the chipping area.

Councilmember Jenkins also reported there will be live fire training this Saturday at the training
grounds. He stated they try to do these at least once a month.

Economic Development Commission: Stephanie Semro: Councilmember Semro stated they
have a meeting this week.

Historic Preservation and Landmarks Commission: Stephanie Semro: Councilmember
Semro stated they met last week with the new members. She stated John Boggs was there to
review what they have been working on. Andrea stated she has reached out to DAHP about a
possible training for the new members as well.

Department Reports: Planning Commission/Historical Preservation: Kevin Cricchio: Kevin
reported that he and Andrea met with PSE today regarding a number of permits they are going to

need for their crest improvements project. He stated this will be a 3—4-year project.

He stated he will be bringing stormwater, wireless facilities, and marijuana regulations to the
Planning Commission soon and then those will come before the Council.

Administration/Finance Report: Andrea Fichter: Andrea stated that she has been working on
the items in their packets as well as finalizing budget items.

She also reported that PJ was selected as the Chair for the HPLC and will be attending the
Planning Commission meetings. She stated this will give the Planning Commission a quorum so
they can continue to meet.

Public Works: Terry Coggins: Terry stated they have been working mostly on decorating town
for the Tree Lighting event last weekend.

Fire Department: Jaesen Meacham: Chief Meacham reported on work on the sirens and that
they will be turning those back on at the first of the year.

Mayor’s Report: No report.
Announcements: Mayor Reed stated this is her last meeting.

Val Stafford on behalf of the Chamber of Commerce presented Mayor Reed with flowers and
thanked her for her service.

% viii




DISCLAIMER: This is not a verbatim transcript of the meeting and is based upon the written notes, audio recording and memory of a participant, attendee,
or video observer.

Councilmember Thomas on behalf of the town presented Mayor Reed with a plaque and thanked
her for her years of service as a Councilmember and Mayor.

Councilmember Thomas also thanked Councilmember Gunnarsson and Jenkins for their service
and contributions to Council. He stated he appreciates their loyalty and preparation for meetings.

Executive Session: None.

Adjournment: Councilmember Jenkins made a motion for adjournment at 8:07 p.m.
Councilmember Gunnarsson seconded the motion. The motion carried unanimously.

Jeremy Akers, Mayor Attest: Andrea Fichter, Clerk Treasurer




Cow

@mm

Erxe

As of January 7, 2026

Bike Park- Initial design reviewed, 3D renderings received, and construction is
scheduled to occur in the spring/summer of 2026.

Adopt-a-Spot Program —

Dog Park — Grant funding not awarded.

Old Fire Department — Terry to bring back drawings and estimates for enclosing
box.

Secondary Access Road — Still waiting to finalize ROW on two properties.

Airport Lease Rate Update — Airport Commission will review draft lease in January.
Sewer Main Relocation — Concrete Sauk Valley Rd — Funding was awarded,
moving through the design, and permitting process

Veterans Park Athletic Court — Funds not awarded through AARP. Researching a
possible roll out court option.

Airport Layout Plan —ALP will go to Airport Commission in January of 2026, then
schedule public hearing at Council.

Water Comp Plan Update — Has been submitted to DOH.

PUD Fiber Vaults — Attorney is researching.

Town and RFA Interlocal Agreement- Working on draft.

PSE Car Charger Program — PSE developing design.




EMERGENCY RESOLUTION NO. 2026-01

A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN OF CONCRETE DECLARING AN
EMERGENCY DUE TO SEVERE FLOODING CREATING A PUBLIC SAFETY
HAZARD AND ESTABLISHING THE NEED FOR IMMEDIATE ACTION TO
PROTECT PUBLIC SAFETY

WHEREAS, the Town of Concrete has experienced or is facing imminent threat of widespread severe
damage, injury, or loss of life/property from flooding due to heavy rainfall and river and creeks overflow
(collectively the “conditions”), occurring on or about December 10, 2025 and December 11, 2025; and

WHEREAS, these conditions have resulted in or could result in evacuations, damage to public/private
property, road closures, utility disruptions, resource strain on emergency services; and

WHEREAS, state law, specifically RCW 39.04.280, authorizes a designated person or person/s of
governing body to declare an emergency, in this case the Mayor, and authorizes such person to take
necessary actions, including waiving competitive bidding for public works during such events; and

WHEREAS, the scale of these conditions may exceed the normal operational capacity and available
resources or result in public utility service interruption or damage for the Town of Concrete; and

WHEREAS, the Mayor approved an initial version of this resolution on December 10, 2025; and

WHEREAS, this Resolution updates and ratifies the initial resolution and subsequent actions taken
related to the conditions. :

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Town of Concrete as follows:

Section 1. Pursuant to RCW 39.04.280, an emergency is hereby declared for the reasons stated above to
procedure the necessary purchases and perform the necessary work.

Section 2. Due the existence of the emergency, the competitive bidding requirements for purchases and
public works are hereby waived for the purpose of having the necessary work performed as soon as
possible.

Section 3. The Mayor is hereby authorized and directed to negotiate, approve, and execute the necessary
contracts regarding the flood event.

Section 4. These actions are taken in accordance with RCW 35.34.200, RCW 35.34.140 and RCW
39.04.280.

RATIFIED by the Town of Concrete Town Council on this 12" day of January 2026.

Mayor-Jeremy Akers

ATTEST: APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Clerk Treasurer-Andrea Fichter Town Attorney-Emily Romanenko

Resolution #2026-01

\\\




EMERGENCY RESOLUTION NO. 2025-19

A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN OF CONCRETE OF DECLARING AN EMERGENCY-DUE TO
SEVERE FLOODING

WHEREAS, the Town of Concrete has experienced or is facing imminent threat of widespread
severe damage, injury, or loss of life/property from flooding due to heavy rainfall and river and
creeks overflow, occurring on or about December 10 and December 11, 2025, as detailed in the
attached findings; and

WHEREAS, these conditions have resulted in or could result in evacuations, damage to
public/private property, road closures, utility disruptions, resource strain on emergency

services; and

WHEREAS, state law, specifically RCW 39.04.280, authorizes a designated person or person/s
of governing body to declare an emergency, in this case the Mayor and take necessary actions,
including waiving competitive bidding for public works during such events; and

WHEREAS, the scale of this event may exceed the normal operational capacity and available
resources or result in public utility service interruption or damage for the Town of Concrete; and

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor of the Town of Concrete as follows:
1. Declaration: A local state of emergency is hereby declared for the Town of Concrete due

to the severe flooding event.

2. Authorization: The Mayor is authorized to take all necessary actions to respond to the
emergency, including entering into emergency contracts, directing personnel, or
requesting state/federal aid.

3. Waiver: Competitive bic_lding requirements for emergency public works projects are
waived as permitted by law.

4. Ratification: This resolution ratifies any prior emergency proclamations made by the
executive.

"m\m/a KReeo/

Mayor — Marla Reed

Resolution #2025-19

(PN




12/17/25, 11:58 AM Inbox - Andrea Fichter - Outlook

Outlook

Re: EDASC Investor's

From Brittany Gonzales <bgonzales@skagitpublishing.com>
Date Wed 12/17/2025 11:42 AM
To  Andrea Fichter <Andreaf@concretewa.gov>

[l]J 1 attachment (2 MB)
2026 Final EDASC Flier.pdf;

Hello, yes, | have the pricing/flyer attached and also a link of the 2025 EDASC magazine.

It is a really nice matte gloss magazine.

*Billed February 2026. Only four feature articles are available. Includes interview and writer fees up to

1,000 words.
*Investors who purchase a half or full page will also receive a Q&A business profile and a professional

photo.

2026 ADVERTISING RATES*

: lns'deBackE:ovar b
{indudes 50K gosimglwom

]'Fuupage ; ; o 82
: ,(Indude75K skaglu:omlm esslons) S

$1075 5925

Below is a link to the guide:

https://www.skagit.org/about-edasc/strategic-plan-and-annual-
reports/p/item/22441/2025-skagit-business-guide

>

https://outlook.office.com/mail/inbox/id/AAKALgAAAAAAHYQDEapmEc2 byACqAC%2FEWg0AgVhxDuXp90OKGsCYYksqDAAlyse4WgAA/sxs/AAKAL...

1/3




ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT ALLIANCE OF SKAGIT COUNTY

edasc Skagit Business Guide 2026

G Economic Development ,
Alliance of SkagitCounty  Behind every Skagit County business lies a great story. Let's tell yours.

Advertising opportunities are available for The Economic Development ‘
Alliance of Skagit County’s 2026 Skagit Business Guide, an annual publication e
shining a spotlight on our amazing business community and illustrating why ’
it's advantageous to do business here. All businesses and organizations,
whether an EDASC Investor or not, are encouraged to join those committed to
showcasing Skagit County's unique and diverse economy. The magazine- style
publication is distributed at business events, to chambers of commerce, cities
and towns, businesses looking to locate here, and to all 250 EDASC Investors.
As has always been the case, all EDASC Investors are included in the guide’s
business directory. As a bonus, EDASC Investors also receive a discount on
advertising costs. If you are interested in becoming an EDASC Investor, contact
Communications Manager Hilary Parker, hllary@skaglt org.

2026 ADVERTISING RATES* Speca Ivestor Priing

: : S e L S 2024 JLYESIOn PROFILES
VHack over L i i S 'v.,qu :vestovrs Only $2,390* ‘

 For Investors Only $2,270*

insideBackCover For Investors Only $2,120*
‘(lncludes 50K goskaglt com lmps&premler emall) o S

%E:Feature Artlcle (2- page)** R R For Investors Only $3 635** :
(mcludes 75k goskaglt com lmps premler emall & a reveal) o b
Fullpage $2 195 + proflle/photo $1 870*»

. (lnclude 75K goskaglt com lmpressmns)

Half Page Sl $1 670 + proflle/photo $1 470*-] g
n'clu es 50K goskaglt com lmps) T

: One" -hlrd Page (lnclude 25K goskaglt com lmpreSSIons) $1 075 $925*_

| *Billed February 2026. Only four feature articles available. Investors who purchase a half or full page will also receive
| Includes interview and writer fees up to 1,000 words. a Q&A business profile and a photo by a photographer.

Sales Deadline: January 5, 2026
o e e Creative Deadline: January 23, 2026
ITP Publish Date: February 25, 2026
SKAG UBLISHING To promote your business in the 2026 EDASC Guide, contact
360.424.3251 | ads@skaaitads.com vour Multi-Media Account Executive for more information.




Please ad to the January 12 agenda or | can include in the
Parks report

We need to eliminate
Imagine Concrete — from the Community Garden

Also the Community Garden Task Force - Which will create the need
to remove CMC Title 2 Admin and Personnel Chapter 2.17

Change this Code

Bed Rentals - CMC Chapter 8.16.020 Rules for Use #22
(22) Town Hall staff shall mail out invoices by Mareh Feb 1st of
each year. Bed rental payments are payable and due by March
31st of each year. If payment is not made in full said bed rental
shall be forfeited as of Apsil March 1st. Forfeited beds will be
offered to the next person on the wait list, if left vacant after all
wait list persons have been notified the previous renter may
reapply for the vacant bed. [Ord. 680, 2011]

\6




WATER & WASTEWATER
SERVICES

Board of Directors

Concrete Utilities

Monthly Report of System Operation
Month: November 2025

For the month of November, the Concrete Utilities water system ran well. Monthly coliform
sample results met state DOH requirements.

Production
Based on
Logs sheets | Current Last Last Year
Jrom Month Month Difference Difference
10/31/2025
to 26 32 30
11/26/2025 Days Days Days
Production | 6,820,155 | 9,003,344 | 13,986,052
Daily Avg. 262,314 281,355 7% 466,202 -44%
GPD/Home - v
484 542 581 963
Miscellaneous
Recommendations
Not at this time.

\lo




WATER & WASTEWATER
SERVICES

Board of Directors

Concrete Utilities

Monthly Report of System Operation
Month: December 2025

For the month of December, the Concrete Utilities water system ran well. Monthly coliform
sample results met state DOH requirements.

Production
Based on
Logs sheets | Current Last Last Year
from Month | Month | e Difference
11/26/2025 '
0 35 26 30
12312025 | Days Days Days

Production | 9,223,058 | 6,820,155 | - 113,986,052 ;
Daily Avg. 263,516 | 262,314 0% 466,202 -43%
GPD/Home - s ——

484 544 542 963
Miscellaneous

Recommendations

Not at this time.

W\




Syiuowl g JaA0 Ul JjuawAed e 9peW 10U 2ABY 1eY] S1UN02JY — pjog -

'§T0¢/ST/TT dn1as Juawasuedse JuawAied

18'€02TS ST0T/ST/Tt Vd —S9A SL'Y8€ES €9°9TVS JBAIM —~ JBUMO G8¢
S240yS
SC0T/ST/TT $0 INys Ja1e 76'95%S GT0T/12/80 SIA Q96485 9S'CTLS 9pedse) —JaumQ 0LT
STOT/ST/TT O InNys Ja3e M 89'68¢€S §202/50/80 SOA GS'6.8S 9S'TTLS Azieiey —JaumQ LEY
sueoq
GT0T/€T/0T 10 1nys 1ol 98'6STS ST02/12/L0 SIA (AN 2 NS 05'648% seNAuusd —JaumQ | 80€
3oue|eq wanbulop JO PaILIIOU USR] SBY JAUMQ uasuaf - JsumQ
4313w /aul| Mau spasu -aul| paJeys -jjoinys o1 sjgeun 00'0STS 9202/20/10 S3IA 0S'20€'TS ¥6'692'CS$ Jajuay 187
juswAed apew Janau sey -Junodde JuelpAH - - uespAH 1S°92SS 26°02SS JueIpAH -12UMQO 7SI
pa]|eisul pue paiedo| 2¢ 0} pPaau Jalaw
pue aul] mau -}JO 1nys 01 3|geun ‘aulj paJeys -€z/ST/6
uo paj|neap ‘€z/9¢/9 dn 19s Juswasuelly JuswAed 00'00€$ §702/50/60 Vd -S3A ¥6°90€°€S 6'STT'ES }eJoag - IUMQ 88
¥2/ST/8 pally ual -AjuQ 19mas 91'8€2$ €z0z/€1/01 S3A 86°€Z8ES 16°0L9°€S Apejano1 - ;sumQ 1LT
's99} |e39] ||e Suipnpul wuly me| Aq [[nj ul pred L6'TLS'STS v20z/61/1T ON LL'L09'TS ¥9°9LV'TS | UBUWBDPN - 1BUMO | 8T
pa10319p yes| dWaJLIX3 03 dNQ ¥Z/TT/T HO INYS 191e M 00°002$ ¥202/90/20 ON 08°97TS SE'SPTS Janeg - 1aumQ TLE
?leq
panP2ay SELVEREH] wuanbuleg | 9z02/80/10 | SZ0Z/¥0/TT
jJusawAed judwied Ajppuaiin) Jo jo #
sSnjels Junoday 1seq Jo unowy 1seq HNoY se ajuejeg se aauejeg 191uay Jo JBumQ 120y




2025 Overtime Hours

2024 Hours - Terry 148.5, Gibson 10, Robert 17.5,

Andrea 17.5, Heather 31, Floyd 30

' /Terry Cogglns

Comp

#of OT Taken in Pay or
Employee Name Month Hours Comp Time Work Description
Terry Coggins January 5 Pay Council Meetings, Spring Box
Andrea Fichter January 2 Comp Planning Co. Mtg
Heather Parker January 2 EDC Meetlng

Snowplowmg, Sprmg batterles o

February
Gibson Fichter February 5 Pay Snowplowing
Robert Foster February 5 Pay Snowplowing
Floyd Smith February 15 Pay Snowplowing

Andrea Fichter

Council, Planning Commission

Gibson Fichter

Gibson Fichter

Street Sweeping

Street Sweeping

Heather Parker
5

Heather Parker

Council, Planning Co Mtg

Planning Co, EDC"

Gibson Flchter

Street Sweeping

Gibson Fichter

Street Sweeping and Restrooms

Heather Parker

EDC, Council, Cle n pDay

Terry Cogglns

e z /i ‘
Terry Coggins July 11 Pay Restroom Issue, Council Mtgs, Power Outage
Andrea Fichter July 3.75 Time Council, Bid Opening, Closing
Robert Foster July 4 Time Bike Park
Gibson Fichter July 26 Pay Restrooms, Sweeping, Flyin
Heather Parker July 2 Time Council Mtg

Councrl Mtgs, Water Leak, Cascade Days ‘

August Pay
Gibson Fichter August 9 Pay Restrooms
Heather Parker August 2 Pay Planning Commission Mtg

Floyd Smith

Gibson Fichter

September

Restroom Issue

Restrooms, Sweeping

Heather Parker

September

EDC, Planning Commission

Council, Water Reconnect, Parks Issue on
Weekend

Restrooms, Water Shut Off, Equipment P/U

Terry Coggins October 10 Pay
Andrea Fichter October 5.5 Time Airport & Salary Commission, Council
Gibson Fichter October 5.5 Pay Restrooms
Heather Parker October 2 Time PIannlng Co. Mtg
Terry Coggins November 1.5 Pay Council Mig.
Gibson Fichter November 3 Pay Restrooms
Floyd Smith November 1 Pay Water Shut Off
= . ‘ T . _ _
Floyd Smith December 27.5 Pay FIoodmg and Landslldes
Heather Parker December 0.5 Time Slide Notices
Gibson Fichter December 3 Pay Restrooms, Flooding/Landslides
Andrea Fichter December 14.5 Pay Council, HPLC, Flooding/Landslides
Terry Coggins December 27 Pay Flooding and Landslides




Budget Hour{ Total Used Remaining
PW OT Budget 205 270 -65
Admin OT Budget 105 56.25 48.75
326.25
Totals by Employee

Employee Name
Terry Coggins

Total Hours

123
Andrea Fichter 27.25
Gibson Fichter 92.5
Heather Parker 29

Floyd Smith 45.5
Robert Foster 9
326.25

20




Count

Monthly Personnel

@

ST

Y

ST

S

i

-

VAEAD

I3
i

i
N
i
5
i

i
A

"y
.
S

RY

AT

TN AN

‘Eﬁl\ AR

OYLA

=}
TE
&)

i

)

ey ar

i

~

§

y chim

(Sl

ow
hie
rew

or

L

4

!

2164

H

“4

-



L

4

onnel Coun

'S

7

ty Per

I~

b

L e U
o1 < < =
Qe NG &
= W G
e e ol
N 49} [} S
- W O
pod
& W
S ¢
ok
oo -
& \W [
Q. e [ . o 2 e
od Dk s bt - 0y [ i
=g o & = & i
Rt P G ar o =
0 e [2.4 e ol i o T
Y
v o
a oo
h .
woF
[T G
oo 3
oW O
Wy L A g - ol o
L6
el <O [a] faw] o
=
g
]
- o .
Z B =
@ A o
e ! o
e [ o]
e : :..w
Lo o
2= )
& PR ol : i
i e o Ty s Py
T P o)
2. - . -~ o~
¥ Ny e .
A -
o [} o o))
It e e e o

WA



